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On October 31, 2019 the Florida Department of Environmental Protection conducted a 

Compliance Evaluation Inspection at World Petroleum Corp. located at 3650 SW 47 Ave. Davie, 

FL 33314. The inspection report was finalized on December 19, 2019.  

 

The inspection report on page 6, violation 263.12 , 62-730.171(1) states: 

 

‘During the inspection, the inspectors observed the manifest tracking number 015912473JJK 

indicating that on 01/04/2017, WPC accepted one 55-gallon drum of hazardous waste, EPA waste 

codes F003, F005, D001 from the generator, and delivered it to Stericycle on 01/27/2019. Based 

on this information, WPC stored hazardous waste for 23 days.’ 

 

The addendum required on page 6, violation 263.12 , 62-730.171(1) is the following: 

 

‘During the inspection, the inspectors observed the manifest tracking number 015912473JJK 

indicating that on 01/04/2017, WPC accepted one 55-gallon drum of hazardous waste, EPA waste 

codes F003, F005, D001 from the generator, and delivered it to Stericycle on 01/27/2017. Based 

on this information, WPC stored hazardous waste for 23 days.’ 

 

 

Please address any questions to Carlos Grajeda of the Southeast District Office at 561-681-6670 

or via e-mail at carlos.grajeda@floridadep.gov . 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Carlos Grajeda  

Environmental Specialist II 

Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
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Florida Department of

Environmental Protection

Hazardous Waste Inspection Report

FACILITY INFORMATION:
Facility Name:  World Petroleum Corp
On-Site Inspection Start Date:  10/31/2019  On-Site Inspection End Date:  10/31/2019
ME ID#:  50795  EPA ID#:  FLD980709075
Facility Street Address:  3650 SW 47th Ave, Davie, Florida 33314
Contact Mailing Address:  3701 SW 47th Ave Ste 101, Davie, Florida 33314
County Name:  Broward  Contact Phone: (954) 327-0724

NOTIFIED AS:
Transporter, Used Oil, VSQG

WASTE ACTIVITIES:
Generator: VSQG Transporter: Commercial Waste Used Oil: On-Spec, Oil Filters, Processor Universal 
Waste: Indicate types of UW generated and/or accumulated at the facility: Transport: Mercury Contaning 
Lamps, Mercury Containing Devices Transfer Facility: Mercury Contaning Lamps, Mercury Containing Devices

INSPECTION TYPE:
Routine Inspection for Used Oil Processor Facility  
Routine Inspection for Used Oil Transporter Facility  
Routine Inspection for Used Oil Transfer Facility Facility  
Routine Inspection for Used Oil Marketer Facility  
Routine Inspection for Hazardous Waste Transporter Facility  
Routine Inspection for Universal Waste Transporter Facility  

INSPECTION PARTICIPANTS:
Principal Inspector:  Romina J Lancellotti, Inspector

Other Participants:  

Norva Blandin, Environmental Administrator; Carlos Grajeda, Environmental Specialist II; 
Jared Heyns, Environmental Specialist II; Chad Gregory, Director of Operations; Andrea 
Miranda; Eric Miranda, President

LATITUDE / LONGITUDE:  Lat 26° 4' 34.1948" / Long 80° 12' 33.0274"
NAIC:  324191 - Petroleum Lubricating Oil and Grease Manufacturing
TYPE OF OWNERSHIP:  Private

Introduction:

On October 31, 2019 (10/31/2019), Romina Lancellotti with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection 
(FDEP) conducted a Compliance Evaluation Inspection (CEI) at World Petroleum Corp. (hereinafter WPC or 
facility), located at 3650 SW 47th Ave., Davie, FL 33314. The records review was conducted at WPC's main 
office located at 4100 SW 47th Ave., Davie, FL 33314. WPC was inspected to determine the facility’s 
compliance with the state and federal hazardous waste regulations described in Title 40, Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Parts 260-268, adopted and incorporated by reference in Rule 62-730, Florida Administrative 
Code (F.A.C.). The inspector was accompanied by Norva Blandin, Jared Heyns, and Carlos Grajeda from the 
FDEP. 
 
The inspectors were escorted around the facility by Eric Miranda, President; Chad Gregory, Director of 
Operations; and Andrea Miranda, administrative staff. Upon arrival at the facility the inspectors presented their 
credentials and explained the purpose of the inspection. 
 
WPC occupies one acre and is connected to public water and portable toilets. WPC has been operating at its 



current location since 2007, and employs 15 staff. 
 
WPC is a permitted Used Oil and a Material Processing Facility, permit numbers 54228-008-HO and 54228-009-
SO, expiration date 12/12/2023. 
 
NOTIFICATION HISTORY 
WPC initially notified with the Department as a used oil transporter on 03/07/1983. The facility was assigned the 
EPA Identification (EPAID) FLD980709075. The facility most recently notified as a Very Small Quantity 
Generator (VSQG) of hazardous waste, hazardous waste transporter, universal waste transporter, small quantity 
handler of universal waste and mercury-containing devices, Petroleum Contact Water (PCW) transporter, used 
oil transporter, used oil transfer facility, used oil processor (on spec), used oil filter transporter, used oil transfer, 
and used oil filter processor on 03/01/2019. 
 
INSPECTION HISTORY 
The facility was previously inspected by the Department on 07/19/2017 as a VSQG and was found to be out of 
compliance at the time of the inspection for failure to: Conduct a waste determination on 22 drums, include EPA 
ID numbers for used oil generators in acceptance and delivery records, update the contact information in the 
contingency plan, and to make emergency arrangements with local authorities. The case was closed with formal 
enforcement actions and penalties applied. 
 
The facility was also inspected by the Department on 12/22/2014 and was found to be out of compliance during 
the inspection for failure to: Include the home address of the emergency coordinator on the Contingency Plan, 
obtain the signature and returned signed copy by the designated facility. The case was resolved through 
Compliance without Enforcement (CWOE). 
 
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) was required to enter this facility. The inspectors were equipped with 
safety boots and hard hats throughout the inspection. 

Process Description:

WPC transports hazardous waste from generator facilities to a second transporter, Stericycle (EPA ID 
FL0000702985), for hazardous waste only. WPC also transports used oil, oily water, used oil filters, PCW, and 
oily solid waste (rags and absorbents). The facility is also authorized to process used oil, used oil filters, oily 
water, solid waste, and to collect and transport PCW. WPC does not manage pharmaceutical wastes. 
 
WPC is surrounded by security fencing and concrete-block walls.The facility consists of a tank farm (inside a 
secondary containment), used oil filters and oily solid waste storage, designated areas for empty container 
storage, parking for the facility's fleet vehicles, and two small outbuildings: One is used as an office and a 
laboratory, and the other is used as a maintenance shop in which minor repairs on fleet vehicles are made. 
 
WPC maintains a fleet of 20 trucks that includes 3 vacuum trucks, a vactor truck, 4 tractor trailers, 9 pump 
trucks, box trucks, and pickups trucks. WPC fleet vehicles are used to transport used oil, PCW, oily water, used 
oil filters, oily waste; to pump out, vacuum, and transport used oil or oily water; and to transport hazardous waste 
and solid waste with the box trucks. 
 
Tanks Farm and Used Oil Processing 
Used oil and oily wastewater are received in the tank farm area located in the southeast corner of the facility. 
Used oil is offloaded into Aboveground Tanks (ASTs) located in the tank farm. The used oil is filtered, and then 
allowed to sit for further oil/water separation. The processed oil is tested for compliance with on-specification 
standards and is sold as fuel oil to WPC customers. 
 
The inspectors observed the following ASTs in the tank farm: 
>One 30,000-gallon tank for used oil labeled with the words “Used Oil” and the number 1. 
>One 6,000-gallon tank for diesel fuel, labeled with the number 2. 
>One 30,000-gallon tank for used oil, labeled with the words “Used Oil” and the number 3. 
>One 20,000-gallon tank for oily water, labeled with the number 4. 
>One 20,000-gallon tank for used oil, labeled with the words “Used Oil” and the number 5. 
>One 20,000-gallon tank for oily water, labeled with the number 6. 
>One 20,000-gallon tank for used oil, labeled with the words “Used Oil” and the number 7. 
>One 20,000-gallon tank for oily water, labeled with the number 8. 
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>One 20,000-gallon tank for used oil, labeled with the words “Used Oil” and the number 9. 
>One 20,000-gallon tank for oily water, labeled with the number 10. 
 
All the tanks listed above were observed within secondary containment of 50,000-gallon capacity and were 
properly labeled. Therefore, the facility complied with labeling and secondary containment requirements 
described under 62-710.401(6) F.A.C and 40 CFR 279.22(c), respectively. 
 
There is a floating disk installed in each tank that measures the current volume of used oil or oily water being 
stored. 
 
Oily water is filtered, and then transferred to a 30,000-gallon boiler tank where it is heated to 225° F for oil/water 
separation. The facility utilizes thermal oil for the process, which is heated in a separate heating tank and then 
transported through pipes directly to the boiler tank. The temperature of the thermal oil raised up to 300° F to 
complete this process. The process is shut down, and the oily water sits for eight hours to let the oil separate 
from the water before being transferred to holding tanks. The oil is then marketed to WPC customers as on-spec 
fuel oil. The separated water is pumped to a truck for delivery to Cliff Berry, Inc. 
 
Mr. Gregory demonstrated to the inspectors that all piping was changed to hard piping to prevent any potential 
spills. The inspectors observed good housekeeping and best management practices (BMPs) implemented on 
site. 
 
Storage Area 
Used Oil Filters (UOFs) are consolidated into a 20-yard roll-off container before being crushed on site under a 
tented area surrounded with concrete berms. The UOFs are compacted and sold to US Foundry in Miami as 
scrap metal, and oily solid waste collected by WPC is shipped out to the Central Landfill in Broward County. 
 
During the inspection, the inspectors observed: 
>Sixty-two 30-gallon plastic containers holding UOFs, labeled as “Used oil filters” 
>One 20-yard roll-off container holding crushed filters, labeled as Used Oil Filters for Recycling” 
>20 empty 55-gallon metal containers. 
>Eleven empty 30-gallon plastic containers. 
 
Oily solid waste (rags and absorbents) are consolidated into a roll-off container for disposal at Waste 
Management in Pompano Beach, Florida. During the inspection, one 20-yard roll-off container holding oily rags 
and absorbents was observed in the storage area. The Storage area is located within a secondary containment, 
all used oil leaks are collected in a oil separator sump located at the northwest side of the property. 
 
The inspector observed 58 spent mercury lamps stored in an open plastic container which was missing an 
accumulation start date [40 CFR 273.13(d)(1), 40 CFR 273.15(c)(1) & 62-737.400(5)(b) F.A.C., respectively]. 
The container was also missing the words "Universal Waste - Lamp(s)," or "Waste Lamp(s)," or "Used Lamp(s)" 
according to 40 CFR 273.14(e). 
 
During the inspection, the inspectors observed one white closed 55-gallon plastic container labeled as 
"hazardous waste" and as "Diesel Exhaust Fluid," however, the facility clarified that the hazardous waste 
labeling was done in error and the content of the container was product. Compliance assistance was offered 
during the inspection, and the inspectors informed the facility that containers labeled as hazardous waste shall 
be subject to RCRA regulations. Therefore, the facility shall ensure all containers stored by WPC possess the 
proper labeling. 
 
According to the facility's Waste Analysis Plan (WAP), when collecting used oil, the driver utilizes an automatic 
halogen leak detector (Tiff Instruments Inc., model number 5050) to determine if the oil contains less than 1,000 
ppm of halogens. If the instrument indicates an elevated reading, the drivers shall perform a field test using a 
Dexsil Kit Q-4000 to verify the halogen content is less than 1,000 ppm. When the oil is above 1,000 ppm of 
halogens, the used oil is presumed to be hazardous waste under the rebuttable presumption rule [40 CFR 
279.44]; therefore, the used oil shall not be loaded onto the trucks or transported by WPC. 
 
Additionally, WPC has a laboratory in which all used oil received and processed by the facility is tested using 
Dexsil Clor- D-Tect to determine their halogen content. Each batch of processed oil is also tested to determine 
the flash point. In accordane with the facility's Waste Analysis Plan (WAP), representative samples are collected 
for on-spec certification using certified laboratories while keeping records on-site for review. 
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Preparedness and Prevention measures including eye wash areas, fire extinguishers, an internal communication 
system, and spill kits were observed on-site. WPC also conducts weekly and daily inspections (checklists) for 
their tanks and secondary containment areas, while also keeping documentation on-site for review. 
 
DOT placards were displayed with the US DOT1118579FL on the side of all trucks. The transporters keep 
copies of the following of the on each truck: Operations Manual of WPC, Liquid Waste Transporter Permit #LW-
000722-2019/2020, the Hazardous Material Management Facility License #ST-00038-19, Spill Prevention and 
Response Plan, certificate of liability insurance, and blank manifest forms. The trucks are also properly identified 
and registered as hazardous waste, used oil, and universal waste transporters and have spill kits and fire 
extinguishers available. 
 
RECORDS REVIEW 
All permits and documentation required by the inspectors were available for review on-site during the inspection. 
Three years worth of records for the shipment of hazardous waste, non-hazardous waste, universal waste, and 
used oil related waste were available for review. The inspectors reviewed the following: 
 
Disposal Records 
> Used oil, used oil antifreeze, used oil filters, oily water, and oily rags: Pick-up and delivery records for the last 
three years were provided for review during the inspection. Crushed UOFs are shipped as scrap metal to US 
Foundry (EPA ID FLD004128336), a permitted facility in Miami authorized to recycle used oil filters. 
 
>Hazardous waste: WPC receives hazardous waste and employs Stericycle (EPA ID FL0000702985) as a 
transporter 2 for the delivery of hazardous waste, and Allworth, LLC. (EPA ID ALD094476793) as the designated 
facility, located at 500 Medco Rd, Birmingham, AL 35217. 
 
>Universal waste - WPC utilizes the AERC Recycling Solutions, a subsidiary of Clean Earth (EPAID 
FLD984262782), as a mercury processing facility located at 4317 Fortune Pl Ste J, West Melbourne, FL 32904. 
 
Based on records review, WPC maintained hazardous wastes for a period of time that exceeds what is specified 
for hazardous waste transporters. The records indicate the following: 
 
>>The manifest tracking number 019087930JJK indicates that on 07/15/2019, WPC accepted one 55-gallon 
drum of hazardous wastes (EPA waste codes D001, D035, F003, F005) from the generator, and delivered it to 
Stericycle (EPA ID FL0000702985) on 07/17/2019. Based on this information, WPC stored hazardous waste for 
two days. The manifest tracking number 019087919JJK indicates that on 03/08/2019, WPC accepted one 55-
gallon drum of hazardous waste (EPA waste code D001) from the generator and delivered it to Stericycle (EPA 
ID FL0000702985) on 03/11/2019. Based on this information, WPC stored hazardous waste for three days. The 
manifest tracking number 019087895JJK indicates that on 11/09/2018, WPC accepted one 55-gallon drum of 
hazardous wastes (EPA waste codes D001, D035, F003, F005) from the generator, and delivered it to Stericycle 
(EPA ID FL0000702985) on 11/17/2018. Based on this information, WPC stored hazardous waste for eight days. 
The manifest tracking number 015912471JJK indicates that on 01/19/2017, WPC accepted one 55-gallon drum 
of hazardous wastes (EPA waste codes D039, D040) from the generator, and delivered it to Stericycle (EPA ID 
FL0000702985) on 01/27/2017. Based on this information, WPC stored hazardous waste for eight days. 
 
The transporter who is owner or operator of a transfer facility which stores manifested shipments of hazardous 
waste for more than 24 hours but 10 days or less (hereinafter referred to as “the transfer facility”) shall obtain an 
EPA/DEP identification number for each transfer facility location and notify the Department using Form 62-
730.900(1)(b) F.A.C., “8700-12FL – Florida Notification of Regulated Waste Activity,” pursuant to 62-
730.171(2)(a). Therefore, the facility failed to comply with time limit requirements for hazardous waste 
transporters. 
 
>>The manifest tracking number 015912473JJK indicates that on 01/04/2017, WPC accepted one 55-gallon 
drum of hazardous waste (EPA waste codes F003, F005, D001) from the generator, and delivered it to 
Stericycle (EPA ID FL0000702985) on 01/27/2019. Based on this information, WPC stored hazardous waste for 
23 days. Pursuant to 40 CFR 263.12 & 62-730.171(1) F.A.C., if the facility stores hazardous waste for more than 
10 days is subject to the permitting requirements for a hazardous waste storage facility. 
 
Non-hazardous waste, including oily soil and oil absorbents are disposed of through Waste Management Central 
Landfill, located at 2700 NW 48th Street, Pompano Beach, FL 33073. Non-hazardous disposal records were 
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available for review during the inspection. 
 
> Contingency Plan - The facility was able to provide a hard copy of their current Contingency Plan during the 
inspection. Last revision occurred on 03/14/2018, but no changes have been made since the last arrangement 
with local authorities was made on 08/14/2017. All elements required by rule were included in the Contingency 
Plan including: Closure Plan, Waste Analysis Plan (WAP), and Emergency Response Procedures. 
 
>Transport, receiving, and shipping records were available for review at the time of the inspection. The facility 
was using forms according to 62-710.901(2) F.A.C. All acceptance and delivery records reviewed were in 
compliance with requirements described in 40 CFR part 279.46. However, it was noted that the specification of 
“on-spec oil” was not included in the Non-Hazardous Waste Manifests when WPC offers oil as fuel. The 
inspectors offered compliance assistance and informed the facility that when selling oil as fuel, delivery records 
shall indicate that the oil is on-spec, and the associated analytical results shall be attached. Some of the 
customers that receive on-spec oil from WPC are: Tex Par, Triumvirate, Cliff Berry, and Community Asphalt. 
 
> The facility's Used Oil and Used Oil Filter Annual Reports from the last three years were available for review 
during th inspection. The most recent Annual Report, dated 03/01/2019, appeared to be complete and in-order. 
 
> Liability Records - Records of the facility's Used Oil Handler Certification of Liability Insurance forms from the 
last three years were available for review. The Certification of Liability Insurance forms appeared to be complete 
and in order at the time of inspection. The facility provided proof of pollution liability insurance issued by Nautilus 
Insurance Company in the amount of $3 million, policy #SSP202312712, expiration date 07/07/2020. The facility 
also provided proof of automobile liability insurance issued by Great Divide Insurance Company in the amount of 
$1 million, policy #BAP202312612, expiration date 07/07/2020. It was confirmed that WPC has not had any 
lapse in any of their liability insurance policies. 
 
>The last three years of the facility’s annual financial reports, specifically for its Used Oil Processing Facility 
Closing Cost Estimate Forms, were available for review during the inspection and also submitted to the 
Department. The Closing Cost Estimate forms appeared to be complete and in order at the time of the 
inspection. 
 
> Records of the facility's Waste Analysis Plan were available for review. The inspector reviewed the facility's 
Waste Analysis Plan, and appeared to be complete and in order at the time of the inspection. More specifically, 
the facility appeared to have a standard operating procedure for testing of halogen content of used oil entering 
the facility. 
 
>Laboratory Results were requested and available for review during the inspection. The facility sends one 
sample per batch to a laboratory to ensure that the oil meets the specifications for on-spec oil in order to sell it to 
its customers. 
 
>The facility conducts daily tank inspections, and the associated daily inspection checklists were available for 
review during the inspection. The inspection checklists included: General housekeeping, security and fire safety, 
leaks, bonding cables, fire extinguishers, pipe surfaces, Safety Data Sheet (SDS), and Spill Prevention Control 
and Countermeasure (SPCC) Plan. 
 
> Employee Training - All employees receive initial and annual hazardous waste and used oil training, which 
includes training on the proper handling of hazardous waste, used oil handling, storage, and spill cleanup.The 
facility also maintains records of the Used Oil Transporter certification and the hazardous waste transporter 
training for each of their employees. The last training was conducted on 06/02/2018. 
 
> SPPC was available for review. The last revision dated was on 05/2017. No major changes have occurred 
since the Department's inspection in 2017. The document appeared to be in order and in compliance. 
 
> All permits, forms, and inspection reports displayed on-site appeared to be complete and in order. In addition, 
the facility prominently displayed all permits and licenses issued by Broward County for its used oil handling 
activities in accessible locations on-site. The inspector observed that the posted county permits/licenses 
appeared to be complete and in-order.

New Potential Violations and Areas of Concern:

World Petroleum Corp Inspection Report 
Inspection Date:  10/31/2019

Page 5 of 16



Violations

Type: Violation

Rule: 263.12 , 62-730.171(1)

Explanation: During the inspection, the inspectors observed the manifest tracking number 
015912473JJK indicating that on 01/04/2017, WPC accepted one 55-gallon drum of 
hazardous waste, EPA waste codes F003, F005, D001 from the generator, and delivered 
it to Stericycle on 01/27/2019. Based on this information, WPC stored hazardous waste 
for 23 days. 
 
Based on records review, WPC exceeded the 24-hour and 10-day storage time limit for 
hazardous waste transporters and transfer facilities, respectively. Therefore, the facility is 
subject to the permitting requirements for a hazardous waste storage facility. Pursuant to 
Fla. Admin. Code Ann. r. 62-730.171(1) [40 C.F.R. § 263.12(a)], a transfer facility who 
accumulates hazardous waste for more than 10 days is an operator of a storage facility 
and is subject to the requirements of Rule 62-730 et seq. of the Fla. Admin. Code Ann. 
[40 C.F.R. Parts 264, 265, and 267] and the permit requirements of Fla. Admin. Code 
Ann. r. 62-730.220(1) [40 C.F.R. Part 270].

Corrective Action: The facility is required to register and re-notify with the Department in order receive 
proper authorizations and permits required to operate as a 10-day hazardous waste 
transfer facility. 
 
If WPC stores hazardous waste for a period more than 10 days under any circumstances 
the facility will be subject to regulation under 40 CFR 264, 265, 267, 268, and 270 with 
respect to the storage of those wastes.

Type: Violation

Rule: 273.13(d)(1)

Explanation: The facility failed to maintain 58 spent mercury lamps in an adequate and compatible 
container with the size of the spent mercury lamps and to keep it closed.

Corrective Action: The facility shall provide an adequate and compatible container for the 58 spent mercury 
lamps and keep it closed.

Comments:

The violation was corrected on-site, during the inspection, on 10/31/2019. The facility provided an adequate and 
compatible container for the 58 spent mercury lamps and properly closed it. No further action is needed. 

Photo Attachments:

 

Before - Inadequate Open Container for 58 Spent 
Mercury Lamps  

After - Closed Container for Spent Mercury Lamps 

World Petroleum Corp Inspection Report 
Inspection Date:  10/31/2019

Page 6 of 16



Type: Violation

Rule: 273.14(e)

Explanation: The facility failed to label a container holding 58 spent mercury lamps with the words 
“Universal Waste - Lamp(s),” or “Waste Lamp(s),” or “Used Lamp(s)”.

Corrective Action: The facility shall label the container holding spent mercury lamps with the words 
“Universal Waste - Lamp(s),” or “Waste Lamp(s),” or “Used Lamp(s)”.

Comments:

The violation was resolved on-site, during the inspection, and the container was labeled with the words 
“Universal Waste."

Photo Attachments:

 

Type: Violation

Rule: 273.15(c)(1) , 62-737.400(5)(b)

Explanation: During the inspection, the inspectors observed 58 spent mercury lamps stored in a open 
container, not marked with the accumulation start date.

Corrective Action: The facility shall mark the container with the accumulation start date.
Comments:

The violation was resolved on-site during the inspection by marking the container holding spent mercury lamps 
with the accumulation start date 10/31/2019. No further action is needed. 

Type: Violation

Rule: 62-730.171(2)(a)

During the inspection, the inspectors observed the following: 
>>The manifest tracking number 019087930JJK indicates that on 07/15/2019, WPC 
accepted one 55-gallon drum of hazardous wastes (EPA waste codes D001, D035, F003, 
F005) from the generator, and delivered it to Stericycle (EPA ID FL0000702985), on 
07/17/2019. Based on this information, WPC stored hazardous waste for two days. 
>>The manifest tracking number 019087919JJK indicates that on 03/08/2019, WPC 
accepted one 55-gallon drum of hazardous waste (EPA waste code D001) from the 
generator and delivered it to Stericycle (EPA ID FL0000702985), on 03/11/2019. Based 
on this information, WPC stored hazardous waste for three days. 

Explanation:

Before - Unlabeled Container with Spent Mercury 
Lamps  

After - Spent Mercury Box Labeled as Universal Waste 
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>>The manifest tracking number 019087895JJK indicates that on 11/09/2018, WPC 
accepted one 55-gallon drum of hazardous wastes (EPA waste codes D001, D035, F003, 
F005) from the generator, and delivered it to Stericycle (EPA ID FL0000702985), on 
11/17/2018. Based on this information, WPC stored hazardous waste for eight days. 
>>The manifest tracking number 015912471JJK indicates that on 01/19/2017, WPC 
accepted one 55-gallon drum of hazardous wastes (EPA waste codes D039, D040) from 
the generator, and delivered it to Stericycle (EPA ID FL0000702985), on 01/27/2017. 
Based on this information, WPC stored hazardous waste for eight days. 
 
Pursuant to  62-730.171(2)(a) F.A.C. [40 C.F.R. § 263.11(a)], the transporter who is 
owner or operator of a transfer facility which stores manifested shipments of hazardous 
waste for more than 24 hours but 10 days or less shall notify the Department as a 
hazardous waste transfer facility using Form 62-730.900(1)(b), "8700-12FL - Florida 
Notification of Regulated Waste Activity," effective date April 23, 2013 [adopted by 
reference in paragraph 62-730.150(2)(a), F.A.C.].

Corrective Action: The facility shall cease hazardous waste transfer facility activities until the proper permits 
and registrations have been authorized and approved. 
 
The facility shall register as hazardous waste transfer facility using Form 62-
730.900(1)(b), "8700-12FL - Florida Notification of Regulated Waste Activity," and provide 
a copy to the Department.

PHOTO ATTACHMENTS:
Tanks Farm WPC Truck with DOT Number 

Roll-off with Oily Solid Waste Roll-off with Scrap Metal from Crushed Used Oil Filters 
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Conclusion:

WPC was inspected as a VSQG of hazardous waste, hazardous waste transporter, universal waste transporter, 
small quantity handler of universal waste and mercury-containing devices, petroleum contact water transporter, 
used oil transporter, used oil transfer facility, on-spec used oil processor, used oil filter transporter, used oil 
transfer, and used oil filter processor. 
 
During the inspection, it was determined that the facility was out of compliance with the following: 62-730.171(2) 
F.A.C. for failure to comply with hazardous waste transporter requirements by exceeding the 24-hour storage 

30,000-gallon Process Tank Tanks Valves to Manage Flow 

Dexsil Halogen Test Daily Tank Inspection Checklists 

Spill and Prevention Response Plan in Trucks 
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time limit for hazardous waste; 40 CFR 263.12(a) and 62-730.171(1) F.A.C. for failure to comply with hazardous 
waste transporter and transfer facility requirements by exceeding the 10-day storage time limit for hazardous 
waste; 40 CFR 273.15(c)(1) and 62-737.400(5)(b) F.A.C. for failure to mark a container of spent mercury lamps 
with the accumulation start date; 40 CFR 273.14(e) for failure to label a container with spent mercury lamps with 
the words "Universal Waste-Lamps;" 40 CFR 273.13(d)(1) for failure to maintain spent mercury lamps in an 
adequate and compatible closed container. 
 
The violations pertaining the spent mercury lamps were resolved during the inspection by providing an adequate 
closed container, labeling with the words "Universal Waste," and the accumulation start date. These actions 
resolved the violations 40 CFR 273.15(c)(1), 62-737.400(5)(b) F.A.C, 40 CFR 273.14(e) and 40 CFR 
273.13(d)(1). 
 
The inspector requested additional information in an exit interview which was sent via email on 11/15/2019. The 
facility responded to the exit interview on 11/26/2019 and provided the requested WAP and proof of submittal of 
the liability insurance to the Department. In the email, WPC also claimed that hazardous waste was not stored at 
the facility. WPC stated that the hazardous waste drums were never unloaded from the transport vehicle; 
therefore, the drums were to be considered “in-transit” under the DOT regulations and never stored at the 
facility. However, DOT regulations do not apply and the trucks are considered a storage vessel under RCRA. 
Under 40 CFR 260.10, storage means the holding of hazardous waste for a period of time, at the end of which 
the hazardous waste is treated, disposed of, or stored elsewhere. 
 
The facility shall not store hazardous waste for more than 24 hours. However, if the facility elects to register as a 
hazardous waste transfer facility it shall ensure that hazardous waste is not stored more than 10 days and meets 
all the requirements under 40 CFR 263 and 62-710 F.A.C. for hazardous waste transporters. 
 
If the facility stores hazardous waste for a period more than 10 days the facility will be subject to regulation 
under 40 CFR 264, 265, 267, 268, and 270 with respect to the storage of those wastes, including permitting 
requirements. 
 
To date, the violations 62-730.171(2) F.A.C., 40 CFR 263.12 and 62-730.171(1) F.A.C. are still pending 
resolution. Therefore, a Warning Letter will be issued by the Department to address the issues described in this 
report. 
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5.0: Used Oil Generator Checklist

Requirements:

The requirements listed in this section provide an opportunity for the Department's inspector to indicate the 
conditions found at the time of the inspection. A "Not Ok" response to a requirement indicates either a potential 
violation of the corresponding rule or an area of concern that requires more attention. Both potential violations 
and areas of concern are discussed further at the end of this inspection report.

Note: Checklist items with shaded boxes are for informational purposes only.

Item No. Used Oil Container and Tank Management Yes No N/A

5.1
Does the facility store used oil only in tanks, containers or permitted hazardous waste storage 
units? 279.22(a)

✓

5.2 Are used oil containers/tanks in good condition? 279.22(b)(1) ✓

5.3 Are used oil containers/tanks not leaking? 279.22(b)(2) ✓

5.4 Are used oil containers/tanks labeled or marked clearly with the words "Used Oil"? 279.22(c)(1) ✓

5.5
Are fill pipes used to fill underground tanks labeled or marked clearly with the words "Used 
Oil"? 279.22(c)(2)

✓

Item No. Secondary Containment Yes No N/A

5.6 Are containers/tanks 55-gallons or smaller that are stored inside:

5.7 Stored on an oil-impermeable surface? 62-710.401(6) ✓
5.8 Are containers/tanks larger than 55-gallons that are stored inside:

5.9 Stored on an oil-impermeable surface? 62-710.401(6) ✓

5.10

Does the building provide adequate secondary containment, or are the containers/tanks 
double-walled, or stored within or on engineered secondary containment that has the capacity 
to hold 110% of the volume of the largest container/tank, or are the containers/tanks 
portable/wheeled and typically emptied every 24 hours? 62-710.401(6)

✓

5.11 Are containers/tanks (regardless of size) that are stored outside:

5.12 Closed or otherwise protected from the weather? 62-710.401(6) ✓

5.13
Double-walled or stored on an oil-impermeable surface with engineered secondary containment 
that has the capacity to hold 110% of the volume of the largest container within the secondary 
containment? 62-710.401(6)

✓

Item No. Used Oil Releases Yes No N/A

5.14 Has the generator, upon detection of a release, done all of the following, as applicable:

5.15 stop the release? 279.22(d)(1) ✓

5.16 contain the released oil? 279.22(d)(2) ✓

5.17 clean up and manage properly the released used oil and other materials? 279.22(d)(3) ✓

5.18
if necessary, repair or replace any leaking used oil storage containers or tanks prior to returning 
them to service? 279.22(d)(4)

✓

5.19
Is the facility in compliance with the prohibition against discharges of used oil into soils, sewers, 
drainage systems, septic tanks, surface or ground waters, watercourses, or marine waters? 62-
710.401(2)

✓

5.20
Is the facility in compliance with the prohibition against using used oil for road or pavement 
oiling for dust control, weed abatement, or other similar uses that have the potential to release 
used oil into the environment? 62-710.401(5)

✓

Item No. Used Oil Filter Container Management Yes No N/A
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5.21 Does the facility store used oil filters in containers? 62-710.850(5)(a) ✓

5.22 Are the used oil filter containers clearly labeled "Used Oil Filters"? 62-710.850(5)(a) ✓

5.23 Are the used oil filter containers in good condition? 62-710.850(5)(a) ✓

5.24 Are the used oil filter containers not leaking? 62-710.850(5)(a) ✓

5.25 Are the used oil filter containers closed or otherwise protected from weather? 62-710.850(5)(a) ✓

5.26 Are the used oil filter containers stored on an oil-impervious surface? 62-710.850(5)(a) ✓

Item No. Releases from Used Oil Filter Containers Yes No N/A

5.27 Has the generator, upon detection of a release, done all of the following, as applicable:

5.28 stop the release? 62-710.850(5)(b) ✓

5.29 contain the released oi62-710.850(5)(b) ✓

5.30
clean up and manage properly the released oil and any subsequent oily waste? 62-
710.850(5)62-710.850(5)(b)

✓

5.31
repair or replace any leaking used oil filter storage containers prior to returning them to service? 
662-710.850(5)(b)4

✓

Item No. Used Oil Mixtures Yes No N/A

Is the facility a VSQG that mixes hazardous waste with used oil and manages the mixture 
under 279? Note: VSQGs can mix both listed and characteristic wastes with used oil.

Is the facility a SQG or LQG that is mixing listed waste (except for listed waste that only is 
listed because it exhibits a characteristic - see question below) with used oil? [VSQGs may 
mix HW and used oil, but they must maintain disposal documentation per 62-730.030(3), 
FAC.] If so:

5.32 Is the mixture being managed as listed hazardous waste? 279.10(b)(1) ✓
Is the facility a SQG or LQG that mixes only characteristic waste (or listed waste that only 
exhibits a characteristic) with used oil? [NOTE: This is also considered HW Treatment and 
other rules apply. However, VSQGs may mix HW and used oil, but they must maintain 
disposal documentation per 62-730.030(3), FAC.] If so:

5.33
Is ignitability the only characteristic of the hazardous waste prior to mixing (or is the HW listed 
only for ignitability)? If so:

5.34 Is the mixture managed as HW if it exhibits the ignitability characteristic? 279.10(b)(2)(iii) ✓

5.35
Does the hazardous waste exhibit ANY characteristic other than ignitability prior to mixing (or is 
the HW listed only for a characteristic other than ignitability)? If so:

5.36
Is the mixture managed as HW if it exhibits ANY characteristic (even if the characteristic of the 
mixture is from the used oil, rather than from the HW)? 279.10(b)(2)(i)

✓

5.37
Does the facility generate mixtures of other materials contaminated with used oil (i.e. 
absorbents, rags, dirt)? If so:

5.38
Are UO-contaminated materials that contain visible free-flowing UO managed under 279 used 
oil standards? 279.10(c)(3)

✓

5.39
Does the facility either manage UO-contaminated materials that do not contain visible free-
flowing UO as hazardous waste have records documenting the materials are not hazardous 
waste? 279.10(c)(1)(ii)

✓

5.40

Are UO-contaminated materials that will be burned for energy recovery being managed as used 
oil under 279? (Used oil-contaminated materials should have a heating value of at least 5000 
Btu/pound to be burned for energy recovery under 279, so low-Btu-value materials like 
contaminated soils and clay absorbents are solid waste, subject to 262 HW determinations.) 
279.10(c)(3)

✓

5.41 Does the facility generate mixtures of used oil with fuel or fuel products? If so:

Does the facility manage mixtures of UO and fuel/fuel products under 279 used oil standards? 5.42 ✓
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[Note: 279.10(d)(2) allows on-site mixing of UO with diesel fuel for use in the generator's own 
vehicles.] 279.10(d)(1)

5.43

Is the facility in compliance with the prohibition against mixing or commingling used oil with 
solid waste that is to be disposed of in landfills or directly disposing of used oil in landfills? 
(Persons unknowingly disposing into a landfill used oil or used oil filters which have not been 
properly segregated or separated from other solid wastes by the generator are not subject to 
this prohibition. Oily waste, sorbents or other materials used for maintenance or clean up as a 
result of spills or release are not subject to this prohibition.) 62-710.401(3)

✓

5.44
Is the facility in compliance with the prohibition against mixing or commingling used oil with 
hazardous substances that make it unsuitable for recycling or beneficial use? (Notwithstanding 
the provisions found in 40 CFR 279.10(b)(3)). 62-710.401(4)

✓

Item No. Space Heaters Yes No N/A

5.45
Does the generator burn used oil on-site in a used oil-fired space heater? [Generators who 
burn off site, non household oil, or burn oil in devices not meeting the space heater exemption 
must comply with 40 CFR 279 - Subpart G.]

5.46
If so, does the facility burn only used oil generated on-site or only household DIY used oil? 
279.23(a)

✓

5.47 If so, does the heater have a capacity of no more than 0.5 million BTU/hr? 279.23(b) ✓

5.48 If so, are combustion gasses vented to the atmosphere? 279.23(c) ✓

Item No. Off-site Shipments Yes No N/A

5.49
Does the generator only use transporters who have received EPA Identification numbers? 
(Include names and numbers in report narrative) 279.24

✓

5.50
Self transport to collection centers - Does the generator only transport their own used oil and 
used oil from household DIY to a used oil collection center? If so:

5.51
Does the generator transport the used oil in a vehicle owned by the generator or an employee 
of the generator? 279.24(a)(1)

✓

5.52 Does the generator transport no more than 55 gallons of used oil at one time? 279.24(a)(2) ✓

5.53
Does the generator transport the used oil to a used oil collection center that is registered, 
licensed, permitted or recognized by a state/county/municipal government to manage used oil ? 
279.24(a)(3)

✓

5.54
Self transport to aggregation points - Does the generator transport used oil that is generated at 
the generator's site to an aggregation point? If so:

5.55
Does the generator transport the used oil in a vehicle owned by the generator or an employee 
of the generator? 279.24(b)(1)

✓

5.56 Does the generator transport no more than 55 gallons of used oil at one time? 279.24(b)(2) ✓

5.57
Does the generator transport the used oil to an aggregation point that is owned/operated by the 
same generator? 279.24(b)(3)

✓

5.58
Tolling Agreement - is the used oil transported and then reclaimed under a contractual 
agreement pursuant to which reclaimed oil is returned by the processor.re-refiner to the 
generator for use as a lubricant, cutting oil, or coolant? If so:

5.59 Does the contract indicate the type and frequency of shipments? 279.24(c)(1) ✓

5.60
Does the contract indicate that the vehicle used to transport the used oil to the processing/re-
refining facility is owned and operated by the used oil processor/re-refiner? 279.24(c)(2)

✓

5.61 Does the contract indicate that the reclaimed oil will be returned to the generator? 279.24(c)(3) ✓

Item No. Marketing and Processing Yes No N/A

Does the generator claim that the used oil meets the specification in 40 CFR 279.11? [If so, 
and the oil is to be burned for energy recovery, the generator is a marketer subject to 40 
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CFR 279 Subpart H.]

Does the generator process used oil by filtering, oil/water separation or other methods prior 
to direct shipment to an off site used oil burner? [If so, the generator is also a used oil 
processor subject to 40 CFR 279 - Subpart F.]
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Signed:

A hazardous waste compliance inspection was conducted on this date, to determine your facility's compliance 
with applicable portions of Chapters 403 & 376, F.S., and Chapters 62-710, 62-730, 62-737 & 62 -740 Florida 
Administrative Code (F.A.C.). Portions of the United States Environmental Protection Agency's Title 40 Code of 
Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) 260 - 279 have been adopted by reference in the state rules under Chapters 62-
730 and 62-710, F.A.C

 

Romina J Lancellotti Inspector

Principal Investigator Name Principal Investigator Title

DEP 12/19/2019

Principal Investigator Signature Organization Date

Norva Blandin Environmental Administrator

Inspector Name Inspector Title

FDEP

Organization

Carlos Grajeda Environmental Specialist II

Inspector Name Inspector Title

FDEP

Organization

Jared Heyns Environmental Specialist II

Inspector Name Inspector Title

FDEP

Organization

Chad Gregory Director of Operations

Representative Name Representative Title

World Petroleum

Organization

NOTE: By signing this document, the Site Representative only acknowledges receipt of this Inspection Report 
and is not admitting to the accuracy of any of the items identified by the Department as "Potential Violations" or 
areas of concern.
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Andrea Miranda

Representative Name

World Petroleum

Organization

NOTE: By signing this document, the Site Representative only acknowledges receipt of this Inspection Report 
and is not admitting to the accuracy of any of the items identified by the Department as "Potential Violations" or 
areas of concern.
Eric Miranda President

Representative Name Representative Title

Wold Petroleum

Organization

NOTE: By signing this document, the Site Representative only acknowledges receipt of this Inspection Report 
and is not admitting to the accuracy of any of the items identified by the Department as "Potential Violations" or 
areas of concern.

Report Approvers:

Approver: Norva Blandin Inspection Approval Date: 12/19/2019
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